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SECRETARY OF LABOR, : Civil Penalty Proceedings
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH :
ADMINISTRATION (MSHA), : Docket No. CENT 80-231-M
Petitioner : A O No. 41-00013-05004
V. :
: Docket No. CENT 80-232-M
CHEM CAL LIME, INC., : A O No. 41-00013-05005
Respondent
Mne: difton Qarry and Plant
DECI SI ON

On January 19, 1981, the Petitioner filed a notion for summary decision
based on a record jointly stipulated by the parties. This notion was resub-
mitted with amendments on May 4, 1981. As grounds for its notion, Petitioner
asserted the follow ng:

1. The parties have stipulated to all material facts
including jurisdiction, coverage, the existence or occur-
rence of the alleged violations, and the appropriateness of
the penalties proposed.

2. The only remaining issue to be resolved by the
Revi ew Conmission is whether Defendant, as owner-operator of
a mne, can be cited for violations of the Act committed by
its independent contractors while enployed at Defendant's
mne property. This question has been addressed and answered
most recently in Secretary of Labor v. Od Ben Coal Conpany,
(FHSHRC Docket No. VINC 79-119), 1 MSHC 2177, and Secretary
of Labor and United Mne Wrkers v. Mnterey Coal Conpany
(FMSHRC Docket No. HOPE 78-467), 1 MSHC 2232 where the
Conmi ssion held that as matter of |aw, owner-operators can
be held responsible for violations of the Act commtted by
its contractors. As the present case is indistinguishable,
at least with respect to the independent contractor issue,
from Add Ben, and Mnterey Coal, supra, the Secretary is
entitled to a Summary Decision affirmng the contested
citations, as a matter of |aw

In the Joint Mtion for Submission of Proceedings upon Stipulated Facts,
the parties adnmitted that no genuine issue remained as to any material fact.
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The submitted stipulations are as foll ows:

The following matters are hereby agreed and stipul ated
to by and between the parties hereto for consideration in
connection with any Motion to Dismiss, Mtion for Summary
Judgment or Decision filed or to be filed herein, as well
as any hearing or trial herein and any appeals resulting
fromrulings on such nmotions, hearing or trial. Each of the
parties reserves the right to disavow all or any part of this
Stipulation in connection with proceedings in any action other
than those in connection with any Motion to Dismiss, Mtion
for Summary Judgment or Decision, as well as any hearing or
trial and any appeals resulting from rulings thereon, and no
matters set forth in this Stipulation shall have or be given
any collateral estoppel or res judicata effects in any other
action or proceeding, except the collateral estoppel or res
judi cata effect of the judgnent or decision of the tribunal
or Court rendered herein based upon such Stipulation, or
parts thereof.

This Stipulation, along with the Conplaints and Answers
filed herein, and all matters incorporated by reference, con-
stitute the entire record in this proceeding.

. Definitions
Where used in this Stipulation:

1. MSHA refers to the Mne Safety and Health
Adm ni strati on.

2. Plaintiff refers to Ray Marshall, Secretary of
Labor, U 'S. Department of Labor.

3. Defendant refers to Chemcal Line, Inc.

4, The Act refers to the Federal Mne Safety and
Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. §801, et_seq.

5. The Commission refers to the Federal Mne Safety
and Health Review Conmi ssion.

6. difton Quarry and Plant refers to a |inestone
quarry and pl ant.

7. Souther refers to Gene Souther Equipnent.

8. Wales refers to Wales Industrial Service.
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Il. CENT 80-231-H

9. In Septenber 1979, defendant owned mining rights to,
and was conducting and causing others to conduct
mning activities subject to the Act at the proposed
limestone quarry and plant, designated by MSHA as
Cifton Quarry and Plant.

10. On Septenber 24, 1979, an inspection of said difton
Quarry and Plant was conducted by a duly authorized
representative of plaintiff pursuant to Section
103(a) of the Act, and as a result of this inspec-
tion, defendant was issued the following citation:

Cl TATI ON_NUHMBER DATE | SSUED 30 CFR STANDARD

00154761 09/24/79 56.9-45

A copy of this citationis * * * incorporated herein
by reference. 1/

11.  Souther is a separate, independent contractor retained
by defendant to install a new conveyor system for
Chem cal Line, Inc.

12. Wiles is a separate, independent contractor retained
to assist Souther in the installation of a new con-
veyor system for Chemical Linme, Inc.

13. Souther and \Wales worked on the installation of the
conveyor system at the Cifton Quarry and Pl ant
during the time in question and were independent con-
tractors within.the meaning of 545.4 of the Secre-

tary's Proposed Regulation referred to in paragraph 37

1/ Gtation No. 154761 was issued pursuant to section 104(a) of the Act. It
alleged a violation of 30 CF.R § 56.9-45 and described the pertinent condi-
tion or practice as foll ows:

"Two sections of conveyor frane with wal kway had been |oaded on a flat
bed trailer and were not secured. Wen additional material was |oaded on
the overhangi ng wal kway of one of the conveyor sections it tipped over and
fatally injured, an enployee."

Section 56.9-45 requires the equipment to be hauled shall be |oaded and
protected so as to prevent sliding or spillage.

The citation was terminated within 10 minutes of its issuance. The
action taken to ternminate the citation was given as foll ows:

"C(perator was instructed on the need to secure equi pnent before adding
additional material on the load."
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

below, that time through all times pertinent to this
proceedi ng.

Citation No. 154761 refers to activities or onissions
of Souther and/or \Wales' enployees orconditions of
Sout her and/or Wales' equipment orfacilities relating
to the performance of the contracted installment of
the conveyor systemat the Clifton Quarry and Plant.

The Production Supervisor of defendant had discussed
safety procedures with the independent contractors
prior to the accident on the day the accident
occurred.

The condition described in Ctation No. 154761 was
abated by the enployees of Souther and Wl es.

The citation does not allege, and it is a fact that
none of the defendant's enployees, equipnment or
activities caused or contributed to the alleged

vi ol ation.

None of the defendant's enployees ever perform and
work for Souther or Wales at the difton Quarry and
Pl ant .

Def endant's enpl oyees had no authority to control
the manner, methods, and details of the performance
of contracted work by Souther or Vales and their
enpl oyees, and this is outlined in the contract
between Chenical Linme and the independent
contractors.

Def endant does and did have enployees permanent!|y
present at the quarry and plant, however, no company
personnel were present when the accident occurred.

Defendant's contracts with Souther and Wales require
conpliance with applicable local, State and Federal

laws, including the Federal Mne Safety and Health

Act.

As a matter of law, Souther, Wales and defendant are
now "operators” within the definition of $§3(d) of the
Act [30 U.s.C. §802(d)] as anended and pursuant to
other relevant provisions.

I1I. CENT 80-232-X

23.

In Septenber, 1979, defendant owned nmining rights to,
and was conducting and causing others to conduct
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mning activities subject to the Act of the proposed
limestone quarry and plant, designated by MSHA as
Cifton Quarry and Plant.

24. On Septenber 24, 1979, an inspection of said Cifton
Quarry and Pl ant was conducted by a duly authorized
representative of plaintiff pursuant to section
103(a) of the Act, and as a result of this inspec-
tion defendant was issued the follow ng citations:

Cl TATI ON_NUMBER DATE | SSUED 30 CFR STANDARD
154762 09/24/79 50. 10
154763 09/24/79 50. 12

Copi es of these citations are * * * jncorporated
herein by reference. 2/

25. These citations were issued pursuant to Section

104(a) of the Act and conply with the provisions
thereof in all particulars.

26. Citation No. 154762 refers to activities or oms-
sions of enployees of defendant.

2/ Citation No. 154762 was issued pursuant to section 104(a) of the Act. It
alleged a violation of 30 CF.R § 50.10 and descri bed the pertinent condi-
tion or practice as foll ows:

"A fatal accident occurred at approximately 11:30 AN on 9/20/79 and
the Dallas Subdistrict Office was not notified until 2:30 Pi{ on 9/21/79."

Section 50.10 requires that an operator inmediately notify MSHA if an
acci dent occurs.

The citation was termnated 5 nminutes after it was issued. The action
taken in abatement was given as follows:

"The operator was informed of his need to report a serious accident
i medi ately."

Citation no. 154763 was issued pursuant to section 104(a) of the Act.
It alleged a violation of 30 CF.R § 50.12 and described the pertinent con-
dition or practice as follows:

"A fatal accident occurred at the nmine property on 9/20/79 and the
accident site had been altered when the accident was reported to MSHA in as
much as the equipnent and material had been noved to a different |ocation."

Section 50.12 requires that an accident site be kept unaltered until
completion of all investigations pertaining to the accident.

The citation was termnated within 10 mnutes of its issuance. The
action to termnate was given as foll ows:

"The operator was instructed on the need to preserve the evidence until
investigation is conpleted."”
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27. The condition described in Ctation No. 154762 was
abated by enployees of defendant.

28, As a matter of |aw, defendant was an "operator"
within the then definition of §3(d) of the Act
[30 U.S.C. §802(d)} and pursuant to other relevant
provi si ons.

V. Ceneral flatters

29. Subject to the qualifications of the preanble para-
graph of this Stipulation:

a) The parties agree to the jurisdiction of the
Conmmi ssion over this proceeding.

b) The parties agree the mnes, operators and
mners mentioned herein were subject to all
provisions of the Act at the tine of the
occurrence.

c¢) The parties agree the conditions alleged in
each citation in fact occurred on the dates
described in each citation and that the sane
constitute violations as follows:

Citation 154761 a violation of 30 CFR §56.9-45
Citation 154762 a violation of 30 CFR §50.10
Citation 154763 a violation, of 30 CFR §50.12

d) For the linited purpose of agreeing to facts on
which the Review Commission may rely to assess
a penalty in this case, should it deem such an
assessment appropriate, the parties agree that
the size of respondent, defendant's history of
previous violations, the gravity of the viola-
tions, respondent's good faith in abating the
violations, and the negligence of the respondent
with respect to the violations are accurately
reflected and set forth in the proposed assess-
ment issued to respondent.

Further, with regard to the negligence of the
respondent with regard to the citations the
parties agree and stipulate that respondent had
instructed the subcontractor thoroughly in safe
work procedures the norning prior to the acci-
dent and that the accident was therefore not
foreseeabl e.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

MSHA policy in existence at the time the citations
nmentioned herein were issued provided for the issu-
ance of citations or orders at the time pursuant to
Section 104(a) of the Act for Mne Safety and Health
Violations to entities identified to MSHA by a
Federal Mne ldentification Number.

A Federal Mne ldentification Number may be issued to
any entity registering with the Mne Safety and Health
Administration upon a denonstration that that entity
controls, or is capable of controlling the activities
affecting the health and safety of nine personnel
However, only one nine identification nunber is

i ssued at any given nine

Federal M ne Identification Nunbers have been issued
by MSHA to entities other than mne owners at mnes
subject to the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act.

Nei t her Sout her nor Wl es possessed a Federal M ne
Identification Nunber for Clifton Quarry and Plant,
the Federal Mne ldentification Number having been
i ssued to defendant

Not having a Federal Mne Identification Nunber,
nei t her Souther nor Wales could be issued a cita-
tion and therefore the defendant, as opposed to
either one of the independent contractors, was
proceeded agai nst.

This agency wide policy to directly enforce the Act
against only owner-operators for contractor viola-
tions was an interim policy pending adoption of
regul ati ons providing guidance to inspectors in the
identification and citation of contractors

On Cctober 31, 1979, MSHA announced the availability
of a draft proposal which would allow identification
of certain independent contractors as operators under
the Act, by publication at 43 Federal Register 50716
Forty-five days were given to comment on the draft
rule.

On August 14, 1979, a proposed regul ation for indepen-
dent contractors (30 CFR Part 45) by which MSHA coul d
identify certain independent contractors as operators
under the Act, was published at 44 Federal Register
47746. The comment period for this proposed regul a-
tion closed on Cctober 15, 1979 and the regul ation

has been enacted
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Docunents attached to Petitioner's Mtion to Amend Stipulation established
that the size of Chemical Line, Inc., was 94,315 man-hours per year in 1978
and that it received a total of eight prior assessed violations. |In the
absence of evidence to the contrary, it is found that the penalties assessed
herein will not adversely affect the ability of Respondent to continue in
busi ness.

Pursuant to 29 C.F.R § 2700.64(b), a notion for summary deci sion shal
be granted if it is shown (1) that there is no genuine issue as to any nate-
rial fact; and (2) that the noving party is entitled to summary decision
as a matter of |aw

The stipulations entered into by the parties have resolved the issue of
whet her the violations occurred as alleged. Each of the six statutory cri-
teria were also resolved. No genuine issue as to any naterial fact remmins
undetermined.

Furthernore, it is clear that Petitioner is entitled to summary deci -
sion as a matter of law. The parties have agreed that the only remaining
issue to be decided is whether Respondent nmay be held liable for violations
connitted by its contractors. As noted by Petitioner in its motion, the
Conni ssion has found that, as a matter of |aw, an owner-operator can be
held responsible without fault for a violation of the Act committed by its
contractor. Secretary of Labor v. Od Ben Coal Conpany, 1 MSHC 2177 (1979)
(Od Ben). In view of the absence on the record of any basis on which to
distinguish the instant cases from dd Ben, it is found that Respondent is
liable for the three violations at issue herein.

The followi ng findings of fact are made with regard to the remaining
statutory criteria

Citation No. 154761: Although the violation which gave rise to this
citation resulted in a fatality, the violation was not caused by any negli-
gence on Respondent's part. The violation was abated within a reasonable
period of tinme.

Citation Nos. 154762 and 154763: These violations were occasioned by
a noderate degree of negligence on the part of Respondent. It was inprob-
able,' however, that these violations would result in an accident or injury.
Both violations wreabated shortly after issuance of the respective
citations.

Based on the information furnished in the stipulated record and sup-
porting documents, and in consideration of the statutory criteria, the
appropriate penalties in this case are found to be as follows:

Citation No.. Assessnent
154761 $100
154762 56
154763 56




ORDER

It is ORDERED that Respondent pay MSHA the sum of $212 within 30 days of

the date of this decision.

Forrest E. Stewart
Administrative Law Judge

Di stribution:

Patricia D. Xeane, Esq., Office of the Solicitor, US. Departnent of
Labor, 555 Giffin Square Building, Suite 501, Dallas, TX 75202

(Certified Mail)

Arthur A. March, Esg., 60 East 42nd Street, New York, Ny 10017
(Certified Mail)
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